Schedule 56 Service Pricing Proposal
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1.  Please provide instructions for downloading Attachment 10, Services Pricing Proposal.

Answer:  The Services Pricing Proposal, Attachment 10, is posted on FedBizOpps with the solicitation for Schedule 56.   The following instructions will walk you through the download process through GSA’s Schedules e-Library.
Open this location:  http://www.gsaelibrary.gsa.gov
1.  On the right hand side you will see “Quick Schedule Go To” and a drop down box.  Select “56” from the drop down box and hit GO.

2.  When the Listing for Schedule 056 appears you will see the following:

56 – BUILDINGS AND BUILDING MATERIAL/INDUSTRIAL SERVICES AND SUPPLIES
                                                        


3.  Click on the “Vendors Click here to view the current solicitation on Fedbizopps.gov” link.  You will then be directed to the Fedbizopps website.

4.  At the Fedbizopps website, Click on the Solicitation 01 link to access and download the solicitation documents.  

5.  You will need to access Atch 10 Services Pricing Proposal – A price proposal must be submitted for offered services. 
6.  Download and print the Attachment.  
2.  What action is required by modification MO14? 

Answer:  Modification MO14 requires submission of a services pricing proposal that thoroughly details the methodology used to price services for GSA customers and commercial customers.  All Schedule 56 contractors providing services under the Schedule must submit a services pricing proposal.   Pricing proposals must be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Attachment 10, Services Pricing Proposal.  A pricing proposal is due to this office by close-of-business January 31, 2006.  If an acceptable proposal is not received by that date, then all Special Item Numbers (SIN) for services will be deleted from your contract. For contractors who do not have services awarded, no action is necessary.  Modification MO14 updates services SIN descriptions in all existing Schedule 56 contracts. 
3.  My services are already priced under my contract. What action do I have to complete due to Modification MO14?
Answer:  Contractors providing services under Schedule 56 contracts must complete and return Attachment 10, Services Pricing Proposal, even if their services SINs are currently priced. The purpose of this modification is to ensure that all services awarded under Schedule 56 are within scope and meet the requirements of Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) 8.4.  Per Attachment 10, awarded services should be described to provide a complete definition of the service functions provided to GSA customers under the contract.  If labor rates are incorporated into the contract, detailed qualification statements must be provided, by labor category.  In addition, a completed CSP-1 for services pricing, showing annual sales and commercial discounting policies, must be provided. Hourly rates and/or rates per job must be listed in the format provided and be submitted in an electronic format.    

4.  How are services to be fixed-price when commercial pricing varies by job location and type of job?  Or when labor is subcontracted to local vendors who bid on a job by job basis?
Answer:  It is our intent to mirror your commercial pricing methodology for GSA service rates.  If you maintain a commercial price sheet, rate estimator, or internal pricing guidelines, all are acceptable for submission as the basis for our negotiations.   You’ll simply need to explain how service rates are calculated by job. 
If you have participating dealers who install products or provide ancillary services under your contract, we recommend you review task order invoices and/or work papers to determine a historical average, by region.  Your dealer network may have established rates.  We have seen proposals with regional rates and some pricing proposals that show a ceiling rate for certain geographical areas (like New York or California) and a ceiling rate for all other geographical areas within the US.  Because of the variables for each task order, your fixed price rate may reflect a worse case scenario.  

If you routinely negotiate service rates with subcontractors based on the specific requirements of each task order, you may be able to calculate a fixed rate based on historical rates for similar jobs.  Past projects could be used to determine a fixed cost for a specific type installation or hourly rates, for example. This price would in turn be the maximum used when awarding sub-contract work. As stated above, regional pricing may be appropriate to account for project variables such as prevailing wage rates.  

FAR 8.4 states that all services awarded under a GSA schedule contract are fixed price either at hourly rates or at a fixed rate for performance of a specific task.  If you are unable to determine fixed rates by one of these methods above or your established commercial practices, then services cannot be performed under the GSA schedule contract. Only those services that can be firm, fixed-price, using hourly rates or fixed price for performance of a specific task, will be considered and awarded under the GSA schedule contract.  All other services must be quoted as open market and the ordering agency will be required evaluate the price through formal procurement procedures..

5.  How should sub-contractor costs be submitted within the proposal? 
Answer:  Not sure if this question relates to Other Direct Costs (ODC) or hourly labor rates?  ODC’s refer to products used in performance of services; as such any ODC’s must be priced in the contract, either on a commercial price list or with a markup to cost methodology (such as RS Means CostWorks).  The pricing proposal must include services pricing that is firm, fixed price at an hourly rate or a fixed cost for a specific task. Previous subcontractor costs could be used to assist you in determining a fixed price and pricing method for your pricing proposal. The MAS  contract is not a cost type contract, so subcontractor costs are not a direct consideration under your contract. However, historical data based on past projects could be used to find a range of these costs and assist in your development of ceiling prices to be used. Regional pricing to account for differences in subcontractor costs might also be used. If these costs vary to such a degree that you cannot determine a firm, fixed-price then services will be considered Open Market purchases by the Government. 

6.  Can I use RS Means CostWorks as a pricing method? 

Answer:  RS Means CostWorks is a commercially accepted pricing method for construction projects and is an acceptable method for calculating pricing, if used by your firm commercially.  If your proposal includes Means CostWorks as a calculator, you’ll need to provide a detailed explanation showing how the program is used to calculate products or services prices.  Means CostWorks is not appropriate for pricing Ancillary Services because it is designed for estimating construction projects.  
A commercial price derived from CostWorks must be provided as a comparison to the proposed GSA price (via the spreadsheet format provided in Attachment 10).  The comparison will establish the price discount relationship between the MFC price and GSA’s price.  The price discount relationship will be maintained throughout the term of the contract; any deviation from the relationship would trigger a price reduction.  
Some contracts under Schedule 56 currently use Means CostWorks to establish a contract price based on a fixed markup of the cost estimate.  If the actual acquisition cost is less than the CostWorks estimate, then the actual acquisition cost replaces the CostWorks estimate as the basis for pricing calculations.  If the actual acquisition cost is more than the CostWorks estimate, then the CostWorks estimate remains the basis for pricing calculations.    
7.  What are the elements of a complete pricing proposal?

Answer:  A complete pricing proposal consists of the following:
· A detailed narrative of 3 projects that demonstrate the type and scope of projects you perform under the GSA contract.

· Detailed explanation of the service functions performed under each SIN
· Detailed explanation of the methodology used to calculate services pricing commercially and a comparison to services priding offered to GSA customers

· Definition of each labor category/service to be performed
· If RS Means Costworks is used to price ODCs, an explanation demonstrating how you calculate cost using the estimator

· Completed Services CSP-1

· Commercial Price List and/or other price support documentation such as copies of invoices with work papers showing how services costs were calculated if no commercial price list is used

· Proposed Economic Price Adjustment mechanism to be used if pricing is not based on a Commercial Price List

· Completed spreadsheet using Format 1 or Format 2 based on pricing method. 

· Pricing Proposal spreadsheet must be submitted in electronic format, such as Excel.

